
 
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
September 28, 2023 

 
Open to the public 

9:00 AM Garfield Township Hall – Upstairs Main Hall 
3848 Veterans Dr, Traverse City, MI 49684 

                                                                                                                                                           
Persons with disabilities which the foregoing opportunities for participation will not address should 
contact Darcey Gratton at (231) 932-3010 or dgratton@gtpavilions.org with questions or concerns.   

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER – 9:00 a.m. Garfield Township Hall – Cecil McNally, Chair, Grand Traverse 
County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 

2. ROLL CALL the member must announce his or her physical location by stating the county, city, 
township, or village and state from which he or she is attending the meeting remotely. 
 

3. FIRST PUBLIC COMMENT 
Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of 
Health and Human Services Board which is required to be open to the public under the provisions 
of the Michigan Open Meetings Act, as amended.  (MCLA 15.261, et.seq.)  Public comment shall 
be carried out in accordance with the following Board Rules and Procedures: 

1. Any person wishing to address the Board shall state his or her name and address. 
2. Persons may address the Board on matters which are relevant to Grand Traverse 

Pavilions issues. 
3. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter, excluding time 

needed to answer Board Members questions.  The Chairperson shall control the amount 
of time each person shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed three (3) minutes. 

a) Chairperson may, at his or her discretion, extend the amount of time any person is 
allowed to speak. 

b) Whenever a group wishes to address the Board, the Chairperson may require that 
the group designate a spokesperson; the Chairperson shall control the amount of 
 time the spokesperson shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed 
fifteen (15) minutes. 

 
The Board shall not comment or respond to a person who is addressing the Board.  Silence or 
non-response from the Board should not be interpreted as disinterest or disagreement by the 
Board. 
 
Please be respectful and refrain from personal or political attacks. 
 

4. COUNTY LIAISON REPORT 
 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt with by 

one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board, or staff may ask that any item 

on the consent calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for discussion.  Such 

requests will be automatically respected. 

 Page 1 of 40



 

If any item is not removed from the consent calendar, the item on the agenda is approved by a 

single Board action adopting the consent calendar. 

 

A.  Review and File           HANDOUT# 
 

(1)    Minutes of the 8/31/23 Board Meeting     1  
(2)       Minutes of the 9/18/23 Board Meeting     Handout 
(3)       Minutes of the 9/19/23 Special Board Meeting    2 
(4)       Closed Minutes of the 9/19/23 Special Board Meeting   Handout 
(5)  Resident Council Minutes       3 

   
7. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
8. CHAIRMAN REPORT – Cecil McNally       Verbal 

 
9. GRAND TRAVERSE MEDICAL CARE  

 
A.  General Information        

(1)    Strategic Planning Update       Verbal 
(2)       Census         Verbal 
(3)       Satisfaction Survey Questions      4 

  
B.  Chief Executive Officer Board Report – Rose Coleman    5 

 
C.  Business 

(1)    Financials         6 

(2)   

 

D.  General Discussion 
(1)              

             
G.T.P. Announcements   

(1)     Next Board Meeting October 12, 2023    
(2)     August Service Excellence Award      7  

      
10. SECOND PUBLIC COMMENT 

Refer to Rules under First Public Comment above. 
 

11. CLOSED SESSION 

(1) Closed session pursuant to section 8(e) of the Open Meetings Act, to consult 
with our attorney regarding trial or settlement strategy in connection with 
pending litigation, Mary John Williams v Grand Traverse Pavilions and the 
Grand Traverse County Health and Human Services Board.    

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 2 of 40



 

1 
 

GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 

1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 
 

MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 31, 2023 MEETING 

 
PRESENT: Cecil McNally, Gordie LaPointe, Mary Marois      Board  
  Rose Coleman, Lindsey Dood, Diane Mallory, Elissa Riffle      Staff  
  Penny Morris           Commission 
ABESENT:  
         
GUESTS: Robert Long, Plante Moran 

 
The regular meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services 
Board was called to order at 9:00 am by Board Chair Cecil McNally at the Garfield Township 
Hall.    

 
First Public Comment – none 
 
County Liaison Report – Morris shared discussions of the most recent county board of 
commissioner meetings. 
 
Approval of Agenda – Board Chair McNally requested to add Resolution 2023-2 Cottage 
Room Rates under C. Business (5).  Motion was made by Marois to approve the Agenda with 
presented changes, seconded by LaPointe and carried unanimously.   
      
The purpose of the Consent Calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt 
with by one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board or staff may ask that 
any item on the Consent Calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for 
discussion.  Such requests will be automatically respected.  

 
REVIEW AND FILE 
  

(1)       Minutes of the 07/27/23 Board Meeting 
(2)       Closed Minutes of the 07/27/23 Board Meeting 
(3)       Minutes of the 08/10/23 Board Meeting 
(4)       Resident Council Minutes  

  
Motion was made by LaPointe to approve the Consent Calendar as presented.  Motion 
seconded by Marois and carried unanimously. 
 
Items Removed From Consent Calendar – none 
 
Chairman Report – McNally spoke about plans for strategic planning and stated that he 
Coleman, Dood and Long have spent hours creating a new plan to bring in more revenue. 
 
Strategic Planning Recommendation – Long stated that the Pavilions have been making 
progress. Long stated that the state will start paying the difference in October. Long stated that 
he believes the impact of Covid is behind us. Long states that he, McNally, Dood and Coleman 
have been identifying operating changes we can and need to make. Long said that there is a 
planned delivery date set in September. Long stated they have increased SNF private pay rate 

Page 3 of 40

dgratton
Text Box
DRAFT

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box
1



 

2 
 

to $410.00 a day and this rate has already been approved. Long stated that they would like to 
make a proposal to increase cottage rates. Long said that Willow would increase to $7,500 a 
month making it a 52% increase. Hawthorn and Evergreen rate would go up 13% and 22%. 
Long said that if approved today the change would start November 1st, 2023. Long discussed 
the IRS audit and stated that we won’t know when and if we will receive these funds and that we 
should not count on that as part of our cash flow fix. Marois expressed that she would like to 
postpone the Willow increase until January 1st, 2024.  The Board made a motion later in the 
meeting under Business.  
 
Satisfaction Survey – Coleman reviewed the results of the satisfaction survey and stated that 
anything in red should be addressed. Coleman stated staff will focus on improvement plans of 
the resident’s survey answers. Marois requested for Coleman to print the survey questions to 
share at the September meeting.  
 
Census – Coleman reviewed the census and stated that our increase is mainly from Rehab 
admissions and not so much for long-term care.  
 
Complaint Survey – Coleman reviewed the results of the complaint survey provided. No 
citations were received.    
 
Chief Executive Officer Report – Coleman reviewed her monthly report for July and answered 
board members’ questions. Coleman stated two grants were received and will let the board 
know what they will be used on.   LaPointe requested to be informed on updates of new 
program through Point Click Care. 
 
Financial Report – Dood presented the financial operations and social accountability reports 
for July 2023 and answered board member’s questions.  Marois requests more in depth 
financial reports and would like a balance sheet added to the report that clearly states how 
much of a deficit the Pavilions is in.  Motion made by Marois to accept the financial operations 
report as presented.  Motion seconded by LaPointe and carried unanimously.   
 
Travel Reimbursement Policy – Coleman reviewed the proposed change to the Travel 
Reimbursement Policy.  Marois requested to wait for approval until she receives a new budget 
plan. Lapointe would like to hear the county’s costs to compare.  
 
Corporate Compliance Officer – Coleman reviewed the need to appoint a new Corporate 
Compliance Officer who reports directly to the DHHS Board.  Motion made by Marois to appoint 
Jamie Wilson as Corporate Compliance as presented, seconded by LaPointe and carried 
unanimously.   
 
Agreement with the Grand Traverse County – McNally presented the agreement with the 
Grand Traverse County and answered board members’ questions. Motion made by Marois to 
accept the agreement with the Grand Traverse County as presented.  Motion seconded by 
McNally and LaPointe did not approve. Roll call vote to follow, McNally voted yes, LaPointe 
voted no, Marois voted yes.  
 
Resolution 2023-2 Cottage Rates – The Board further discussed the proposed changes to 
increase rates at the Cottages.   Motion was made by Marois to approve proposed Rate 
Changes - Resolution 2023-2 for Evergreen and Hawthorn to start November 1st, 2023 but 
would like to start the Willow increase January 1st, 2024.  Motion seconded by LaPointe and 
carried unanimously. 

Page 4 of 40



 

3 
 

 
Grand Traverse Pavilions Announcements  

(1) Next Board Meeting September 8, 2023  
(2) July Service Excellence Award 

 
Second Public Comment  
Harold Lassers 
Claudia Bruce 
 
Meeting adjourned at 11:28 am 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Cecil McNally – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
 
 

Rose Coleman, Assistant-Secretary 
 
Date:                                   Approved 
                                   Corrected and Approved 
 

Page 5 of 40



 

1 
 

                                                                                            
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 

 
MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
    
PRESENT: Cecil McNally, Gordie LaPointe, Mary Marois   Board 
  Rose Coleman, Lindsey Dood     Staff 
ABSENT:     
GUESTS: Jeffrey Segal of Warner Norcross + Judd (virtual) 
  Deb Jackson, GTP Foundation Board President  
  Haider Kazim, GTP Foundation Board Vice President  
     
The special board meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human 
Services Board was called to order at 9:08 am by Board Chair Cecil McNally in the Board room 
at Grand Traverse Pavilions.   
 
Roll Call - McNally - yes, LaPointe – yes, Marois – yes 
 
First Public Comment - none 
 
Motion was made by Marois seconded by LaPointe to go into Closed Session at 9:08 am for the 
purpose of Closed session pursuant to section 8(e) of the Open Meetings Act, to consult with 
our attorney regarding trial or settlement strategy in connection with pending litigation, DHHS 
and the Grand Traverse Pavilions Foundation Board v PACE North. 
 
Roll Call - McNally - yes, LaPointe – yes, Marois – yes 
 
Motion was made by Marois to come out of Closed Session at 10:25 am, seconded by 
LaPointe.  Motion carried. 
 
Roll Call - McNally - yes, LaPointe – yes, Marois – yes 
 
Motion was made by Marois to accept recommendations from attorney regarding trial or 
settlement for PACE North versus Department of Health and Human Services Board, seconded 
by LaPointe and carried unanimously.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:25 am 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Cecil McNally – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
 
Date: September 28, 2023       Approved 
                                         Corrected and Approved 

Page 6 of 40

dgratton
Text Box
DRAFT

dgratton
Text Box
2



Page 1 of 5 
 

BIRCH RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
August 23, 2023 

 
The Birch August 2023 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council was 
called to order at 3:00pm in the Birch Activity Room by Kari Belanger, CTRS. 
 
All residents were welcomed. 
The residents waived their right to a closed meeting. 
The Lord’s Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance were recited. 
 
8 Members present were introduced: 
 Residents are marked X throughout the minutes.    
 
Staff members were introduced: 
Kari Belanger, CTRS, Life Enrichment  
 
The July 2023 minutes were distributed to all in attendance on 08/22/2023, per prior 
resident suggestion and request; the minutes were also offered to everyone in 
attendance at the meeting held this day.   
 
 
Old Business: 
Kari provided the following follow-up: 
On Tuesday August 15 per a Cherry resident suggestion, an activity of enjoying grilled 
sweet corn on the cob took place. X said, “local sweet corn is the best.” 
 
New Business: 
Kari made the following announcements:  

- The Summer Concert on the Lawn that was cancelled on Thursday August 3, 
Rebooted featuring Judy Harrison, is rescheduled for Thursday September 14. 

 
Special Event Activities for September 

• Friday September 1: Bingo Store – 10:30am-12:00pm – Multi-Purpose Room 

• Wednesday September 6: Piano Music Performance by John Denner – 11:00am 
– Multi-Purpose Room 

• Thursday September 7: Music & Fun with GTP Kids – 10:30am – Multi-Purpose 
Room 

• Sunday September 10: American Legion Riders – 2:00pm – Cherry Tent 

• Wednesday September 13: Church Services with Pastor Kent Anderson of West 
Bay Covenant Church – 11:00am – Multi-Purpose Room 

• Thursday September 14 – Donuts & Cartoons with GTP Kids – 10:30am – Multi-
Purpose Room 
 

 

Page 7 of 40

dgratton
Text Box
3



Page 2 of 5 
 

Outings to sign-up for: 
Friday September 8: Lunch at Culvers (resident suggested, X, in  

March 2023); Board bus at 10:30am, return approximately 2:00pm 
 
Tuesday September 12: Shopping at Walmart (resident suggested, X,  

in June 2023); Board bus at 9:30am, return approximately 3:00pm 
 
Friday September 15: Leelanau Sands Casino (resident suggested, X, in April 2023); 
Board bus at 9:30am, return approximately 12:30pm 

 
Tuesday September 26: Shopping at Dollar Tree (resident suggested, X, in  

May 2023); Board bus at 2:00pm, return approximately 4:00pm 
 
Residents present at the meeting signed up for the outing of their choosing as well as 
an alternate outing if they desired. 
 
Resident Group Interview Questions: 
Kari discussed with the attending residents that are 12 resident rights that are reviewed 
during the group interview with the State Surveyors during our annual survey, and today 
we will be reviewing Costs. 
 
Costs:  

• Are you, or your representative, informed by the facility about which items and 
services are available and related changes? 
Residents present at the meeting said “yes.” One resident asked to have Traci 
(ADON) come and see her about the cost of medications. One resident said, “Our 
beauty shop is very reasonable, and she does a good job.” 
 

• If there was any change in these items that you must pay for, were you or your 
representative informed? 
No comments brought forward by residents present. 

 
1.  Discussion regarding food temperature and receiving HS snacks. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

- I don’t like the oatmeal. It doesn't need to be cooked in milk. It is tough and not 
tender soft. 

- I would like to have the popcorn in the black bag for an evening snack. I ask for it 
but told we don’t have it. If we aren’t going to buy it anymore, just tell me and I 
won’t ask for it. 

- The clam chowder soup was so thin. It didn’t taste like it at all. 
- The glazed ham with macaroni & cheese was the worst meal I’ve ever had. 
- The cobbler on the menu is not cobbler – it is pie. If cobbler is going to be on the 

menu, make sure that it is cobbler. 

Page 8 of 40



Page 3 of 5 
 

o All residents present agreed with X statement about the cobbler. 
X: 

- The food has been wonderful, but I agree with X about the oatmeal, it is not 
good. That’s why I get my own oats and soak them overnight. 

- The fish on the menu is wonderful. 
X: 

- The food is great. I love the coffee here and I’m a coffee snob. 
- The cream of spinach soup is wonderful, I could eat it all the time. 
- I would like to see biscuits and gravy more often. 

X: 
- I like the oatmeal the way that it is. 

X: 
- Could I get a copy of the always available menu? 

o Kari said that she would provide this in the Pavilions Post that will come 
out on 08/25/2023 for all residents as we have many new faces 
throughout the building. X thanked Kari for doing this for everyone. 

X: 
- I’m a really picky eater and I don’t like the food here. I only order and eat burgers 

and chicken tenders. It would be nice to have the little microwave pizzas again. 
 

2.  Discussion regarding the cleanliness of the facility and laundry being returned 
promptly. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

- I’ve asked a couple of times to have my carpet deep cleaned and scrubbed, 
especially by my bed, but it hasn’t happened yet. If they can do it in the afternoon 
after 1:30-2:00pm, that would be great as I sleep in later in the morning. 

o Kari will submit a Maintenance Request and a follow-up email to the ES 
department to have this request of X taken care of. 

X: 
- Can have my windows washed on the inside? All of the windows should be 

washed on the inside a couple of times a year. 
o Kari will submit a Maintenance Request and a follow-up email to the ES 

department on X behalf. 
 
3.  Discussion regarding room temperature. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:  
X: 

- I am freezing cold all the time. 
o Kari to send a request to have the temperature checked in X room. 

X: 
- It doesn’t really matter. I am freezing and hot, sometimes at night and sometimes 

throughout the day. 

Page 9 of 40



Page 4 of 5 
 

X: 
- My room feels good to me. 

X: 
- I am good and comfortable. 

 
4.  Discussion regarding nursing care. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

- For the most part, they are okay. Some are a little more curt than others in the 
way that they talk. 

X: 
- They are really good. 

 
5.  Discussion regarding call lights being answered in a timely manner. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X and X both said in agreement, “It depends who is on and the time of day.” 

o Kari has shared this information with Traci to follow up on. 
 
6.  Discussion regarding receiving showers as needed/as requested. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:              
All residents nodded their heads “yes” when asked about receiving showers as needed 
or requested. No additional comments or feedback was given.   

 
7. Discussion regarding the nighttime noise level on Birch Pavilion. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

- I need to talk with Traci and Sarah about someone that likes to sit outside my 
door and is yelling or moaning all throughout the day and night. 

o Kari has asked Traci & Sarah to follow up with X privately on this concern. 
X: 

- It varies from night to night. 
X: 

- They do their best. Staff do get talking louder at times, but they do their best. 
X: 

- I just take my hearing aids out and I don’t hear a thing. 
X: 

- It’s fine; every once in a while it gets a little loud at night but it’s okay. 
The floor was opened for additional comments: 
X: 

- I saw in the newsletter the activity Name That Tune – I would like to go to that 
some time, it sounds like fun. 

Page 10 of 40



Page 5 of 5 
 

o Kari will plan on this activity taking place in the Birch Activity Room. 
- The Fall Color Drive and Christmas Light Drive was nice, will we do this again? 

o Kari told everyone present that we will be watching the weather forecasts 
for the leaves changing and will plan drives around this. Kari also said that 
Christmas Light Drives will take place in December, in the evening hours, 
before Christmas. X thanked Kari for this information and said, “I’m looking 
forward to going again.” 

X: 
- Over the past few days, the service for our TV’s has been bad. I know we have 

DirecTV here and it’s bad. I am rescanning my TV channels almost daily and I 
shouldn’t have to do that. I know the weather has been messing it up, but this is 
bad. We should be able to watch TV without any issues but we can’t. Can 
something be done? 

o Kari told everyone that she would contact the Information Systems 
department and ask them to look into X concerns and to provide feedback 
or follow up. 

- I like how today’s meeting was in the afternoon. Can we have the meeting in the 
afternoon in the future? 

o X said, “I agree, I like the afternoon time. I usually don’t get up and moving 
until 10:30-11:00am.” X said, “I agree with X, I’m the same way.” X said, “I 
can go either way. I like to nap in the afternoon, but I’ll just have to make 
my nap shorter.” 

 
Kari asked all residents present if they would like to continue to have their Birch 
Resident Council meeting in the morning at 10:30am on the day scheduled or move the 
meeting time to 3:00pm on the day scheduled. All residents present either said, “move 
the meeting to 3:00pm” or nodded their heads in agreement with other residents as the 
statement was made. Will move the time of the September and future Birch Resident 
Council meetings to begin at 3:00pm. 

  
The next Birch Resident Council meeting will be held on Wednesday September 27 at 
the new time of 3:00pm in the Birch Activity Room. Kari asked for a volunteer to read 
over and sign the August 2023 minutes, and no one volunteered or said they would like 
to do this. The Birch Resident Council Meeting was adjourned at 4:10pm by X, 
seconded by X. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
________________________________   
Kari Belanger, CTRS     
Recreational Therapist                

Page 11 of 40



Page 1 of 5 
 

CHERRY RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
August 24, 2023 

 
The Cherry August 2023 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council was 
called to order at 10:30am in the Cherry Activity Room by Kari Belanger, CTRS. 
 
All residents were welcomed. 
The residents waived their right to a closed meeting. 
The Lord’s Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance were recited. 
 
8 Members present were introduced: 
Residents marked as X throughout the minutes. 
    
Staff members were introduced: 
Kari Belanger, CTRS, Life Enrichment  
Marta Pratt, RN, ADON – Cherry Pavilion 
Emily Tyrrell, LLBSW – Cherry Pavilion Social Work 
 
The July 2022 minutes were distributed to all in attendance on 08/22/2023, per prior 
resident suggestion and request; the minutes were also offered to everyone in 
attendance at the meeting held this day.  X made a motion to accept the July 2023 
minutes as written; X seconded the motion. 
 
Old Business: 
Kari provided the following follow-up: 
On Tuesday August 15 per X suggestion at the June meeting, an activity of enjoying 
grilled sweet corn on the cob took place. X said, “it was wonderful!” 
 
New Business: 
Kari made the following announcements:  

- The Summer Concert on the Lawn that was cancelled on Thursday August 3, 
Rebooted featuring Judy Harrison, is rescheduled for Thursday September 14. 

 
Special Event Activities for September 

• Friday September 1: Bingo Store – 10:30am-12:00pm – Multi-Purpose Room 

• Wednesday September 6: Piano Music Performance by John Denner – 11:00am 
– Multi-Purpose Room 

• Thursday September 7: Music & Fun with GTP Kids – 10:30am – Multi-Purpose 
Room 

• Sunday September 10: American Legion Riders – 2:00pm – Cherry Tent 

• Wednesday September 13: Church Services with Pastor Kent Anderson of West 
Bay Covenant Church – 11:00am – Multi-Purpose Room 

• Thursday September 14 – Donuts & Cartoons with GTP Kids – 10:30am – Multi-
Purpose Room 

Page 12 of 40



Page 2 of 5 
 

 
Outings to sign-up for: 
Friday September 8: Lunch at Culvers (resident suggested, X, in  

March 2023); Board bus at 10:30am, return approximately 2:00pm 
 
Tuesday September 12: Shopping at Walmart (resident suggested, X,  

in June 2023); Board bus at 9:30am, return approximately 3:00pm 
 
Friday September 15: Leelanau Sands Casino (resident suggested, X, in April 2023); 
Board bus at 9:30am, return approximately 12:30pm 

 
Tuesday September 26: Shopping at Dollar Tree (resident suggested, X, in  

May 2023); Board bus at 2:00pm, return approximately 4:00pm 
 
Residents present at the meeting signed up for the outing of their choosing as well as 
an alternate outing if they desired. 
 
Resident Group Interview Questions: 
Kari discussed with the attending residents that are 12 resident rights that are reviewed 
during the group interview with the State Surveyors during our annual survey, and today 
we will be reviewing Costs. 
 
Costs:  

• Are you, or your representative, informed by the facility about which items and 
services are available and related changes? 
All residents present nodded their heads “yes.” 
 

• If there was any change in these items that you must pay for, were you or your 
representative informed? 

  No comments brought forward by residents present. 
 

1.  Discussion regarding food temperature and receiving HS snacks. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

- The temperature of my breakfast is usually poor. They are out of things most of 
the time, like out of sausage. I’m so disappointed as this is my primary meal that I 
eat all day. 

- They are good about adding or offering sour cream. 
- I do get a snack if I ask for it, but I usually don’t ask. 

X: 
- The temperature is fine. They forget things every day and they put things on the 

tray that I didn’t order. 
- The soups are nothing but broth with very little vegetables. The soups are also 

tasteless; the only taste you get is when it is loaded with crackers. 

Page 13 of 40



Page 3 of 5 
 

X: 
- The last three nights with dinner, it has been late. 6:35pm is when I have gotten 

it. We wait and wait and wait, for all of our meals. 
- You never really get what you actually order. 
- The soups are very watery, thin and there is nothing to them. 
- I am never offered snacks, plus we don’t have the assortment that we used to 

have. 
X: 

- You don’t get, or I don’t get what I have circled – I end up getting it all and I only 
want what I circled. 

- Once every three weeks at night I get a snack. 
X: 

- I am not offered snacks at all. 
 
2.  Discussion regarding the cleanliness of the facility and laundry being returned 
promptly. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

- My bed is made very promptly each day, and my room looks nice. 
X: 

- Sometimes the carts are in the way of my table where I paint, and sometimes the 
smell is overwhelming. 

o Marta told X and all present that she would address this with the Cherry 
team during huddles. 

X: 
- I have to ask the staff to make my bed. 

X: 
- They are doing a good job with my laundry. But I don’t like my pants and tops 

hung together on the same hanger. I know they do this for space, but it is hard 
for me to find the pants I want to wear when they are covered up with a shirt I 
don’t want to wear. 

 
3.  Discussion regarding room temperature. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:  
X: 

- I am cold in my room all the time. I go out into the hallway and it feels warmer 
than in my room. Can I have plastic put back on my window again? 

X agreed with X and said, “me too” but did not say that she wanted plastic placed on her 
window. 
 
  

Page 14 of 40



Page 4 of 5 
 

4.  Discussion regarding nursing care. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

- The men staff are more courteous than the women are in their manners. The 
men are happy, and the women are grouchy. 

X: 
- They are doing a good job. They are doing more than usual as a nurse. 

X: 
- Our regular CNAs are good. 

 
5.  Discussion regarding call lights being answered in a timely manner. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

- It’s the same old story – the staff never look down my hallway and see me sitting 
out in the hallway. My neighbor has to come out of his room too looking for help. 

X: 
- Some residents I feel have more seniority and get help more often than me. 

 
6.  Discussion regarding receiving showers as needed/as requested. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:              
All residents nodded their heads “yes” when asked about receiving showers as needed 
or requested. No additional comments or feedback was given.   
   
7. Discussion regarding the nighttime noise level on Cherry Pavilion. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
No comments or feedback was given regarding the nighttime noise level on Cherry 
Pavilion other than “it is fine.” 
X: 

- The bright lights wake me up, but the noise does not. The staff leave the light on 
in the bathroom and it wakes me up. 

 
The floor was opened for additional comments: 
X: 

- I would like to see Dominic Fortuna at the Concerts on the Lawn next year since 
he wasn’t here this year. 

o Kari said that she would share this with Marketing/Public Relations as that 
is who works on getting the entertainment lined up for the concert series. 

- A shopping outing to Merchandise Outlet, especially on Fridays as they offer a 
20% discount. 

- Lunch at China Fair. 
 

Page 15 of 40



Page 5 of 5 
 

X: 
- Lunch and Ice Cream at Dairy Queen. 

X: 
- At breakfast club, could we have the waffle bar again? Or try an omelet bar? 
 

The next Cherry Resident Council meeting will be held on Thursday September 28, 
2023, at 10:30am in the Cherry Activity Room. Kari asked for a volunteer to read over 
and sign the August 2023 minutes, and X said that she would do this. The Cherry 
Resident Council Meeting was adjourned at 11:35am by X seconded by X. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Kari Belanger, CTRS    X, Cherry Pavilion Resident 
Recreational Therapist                
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Marta Pratt, RN     Emily Tyrrell, LLBSW 
Cherry Pavilion Assistant Director of Nursing  Cherry Pavilion Social Work 
 
 
 
 

Page 16 of 40



DOGWOOD RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
August 30, 2023 

 
The Dogwood August 2023 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council 
was called to order at 10:51am in the Dogwood Sunroom by Cindi Pobuda. 
 
All residents were welcomed. 
The residents waived their right to a closed meeting. 
The Lord’s Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance were recited. 
 
6 Members present were introduced: 
Residents marked as X throughout the minutes. 
 
Staff members were introduced: 
Cindi Pobuda, LBSW – Dogwood Pavilion Social Work 
Linda Burton, CTRS, Life Enrichment  
Naomi Rode, RN, ADON – Dogwood Pavilion 
 
Old Business: 
The July 2023 minutes were distributed to all in attendance and reviewed.  X made a 
motion to accept the July 2023 minutes as written; X seconded the motion. 

• X expressed at the July meeting that she needs the staff to introduce themselves 
by name when they enter her room, not just say, “It’s me.”  X reported that staff 
introducing themselves has improved. 

 
New Business: 
Linda made the following announcements:  

- The Summer Concert on the Lawn that was cancelled on Thursday August 3, 
Rebooted featuring Judy Harrison, is rescheduled for Thursday September 14. 

 
Special Event Activities for September 

• Friday September 1: Bingo Store – 10:30am-12:00pm – Multi-Purpose Room 

• Wednesday September 6: Piano Music Performance by John Denner – 11:00am 
– Multi-Purpose Room 

• Thursday September 7: Music & Fun with GTP Kids – 10:30am – Multi-Purpose 
Room 

• Sunday September 10: American Legion Riders – 2:00pm – Cherry Tent 

• Wednesday September 13: Church Services with Pastor Kent Anderson of West 
Bay Covenant Church – 11:00am – Multi-Purpose Room 

• Thursday September 14 – Donuts & Cartoons with GTP Kids – 10:30am – Multi-
Purpose Room 
 

Outings to sign-up for: 
Friday September 8: Lunch at Culvers (resident suggested, X, in March 2023); Board 
bus at 10:30am, return approximately 2:00pm 
 

Page 17 of 40



Tuesday September 12: Shopping at Walmart (resident suggested, X, in June 2023); 
Board bus at 9:30am, return approximately 3:00pm 
 
Friday September 15: Leelanau Sands Casino (resident suggested, X, in April 2023); 
Board bus at 9:30am, return approximately 12:30pm 

 
Tuesday September 26: Shopping at Dollar Tree (resident suggested, X, in May 2023); 
Board bus at 2:00pm, return approximately 4:00pm 
 
Residents present at the meeting signed up for the outing of their choosing as well as 
an alternate outing if they desired. 
 
Residents were asked for ideas for future activities: 

• X suggested a pizza luncheon.  X agreed and suggested Pizza Hut brought here.  
He likes Meat Lovers. 

• X would like to have another taco luncheon.   
 
 
Resident Group Interview Questions: 
Cindi discussed with the attending residents that are 12 resident rights that are 
reviewed during the group interview with the State Surveyors during our annual survey, 
and today we will be reviewing Costs. 
 
Costs:  

• Are you, or your representative, informed by the facility about which items and 
services are available and related changes? 

• X said, “No” then changed to “Yes” when Cindi noted that residents are provided with 
a list of the cost of the items used at the facility on admission.  X stated, “I think so.” 

• If there was any change in these items that you must pay for, were you or your 
representative informed? 

• X said, “Yes.” 

• Cindi stated that the facility sends out a letter when pricing changes occur. 
 
 
1.  Discussion regarding food temperature and receiving HS snacks. 
The floor was opened for residents to respond regarding food temperature: 

• X said, “Meals are good, except the turkey casserole was dry.  We have been 
waiting too long.  They should let us know if it is going to be late.  Their timing is 
off.” 

• X said, “Yes.  The food is good.” 

• X said, “Yes, until this week.  It was dried out bad yesterday.” 

• X said, “I would not go if I had to pay.  The times vary.  I’ve received two salads 
at one meal.” 

• Naomi explained that the concerns have been passed along to Fore Front.  They 
have different staff coming and the timing should improve.  The CEO oversees 
the kitchen. 

Page 18 of 40



The floor was opened for residents to respond regarding HS snacks: 

• X said, “Yes, Rhonda does.” 

• X said, “Yes.” 

• X said, “Yes.” 
 
2.  Discussion regarding the cleanliness of the facility and laundry being returned 
promptly. 
The floor was opened for residents to respond to the cleanliness of the facility: 

• All agreed the rooms are clean.  It was noted that Amanda does a good job. 
 

The floor was opened for residents to respond to the laundry being returned promptly: 

• All residents stated that their laundry is returned promptly. 
 

3.  Discussion regarding room temperature. 
The floor was opened for residents to respond: 

• X said, “Okay.” 

• X said, “It’s cold in my room.  Maintenance will be asked to check the 
temperature.  X was encouraged to open his blinds and leave his privacy curtain 
open some of the time.  
 

4.  Discussion regarding nursing care. 
The floor was opened for residents to respond to the question, “Are the nurses doing a 
good job taking care of you?”: 

• X said, “Yes.”   

• X said, “Well yeah.” 

• X said, "Oh yeah, they’re great.” 
 
5.  Discussion regarding call lights being answered in a timely manner. 
The floor was opened for residents to respond:  

• X said, “Sometimes I have to wait too long but it’s because the CNA is helping 
someone else.  The nurse came to check when the CNA was busy.” 

• X said, “Sometimes I wait and wait.” 

• X said, “Yes.” 
 

6.  Discussion regarding receiving showers as needed/as requested. 
The floor was opened for residents to respond: 

• X said, “I am.” 

• X said, “Yes.” 

• X asked: “Is everyone happy when they get up?  Are you cleaned up properly?”  
X responded, “I do myself.”  X said, “Nurse washes my face.  Jen shaves my 
face.  I get shaved every other day.” 
 

7. Discussion regarding the nighttime noise level on Dogwood Pavilion. 
The floor was opened for residents to respond: 

• X laughed and said, “I’m deaf.” 

Page 19 of 40



• X said, “It’s awfully quiet.” 

The floor was opened for additional comments: 

• X asked, “What do you do with hearing aids?  X had hearing aids that 
disappeared and mysteriously they reappeared.  He is getting a new pair.  
What will you do to ensure they don’t go the way of the wicked?”  Cindi 
stated, “The nurse can pick them up at night and keep them in the office or 
the medication cart and then return them in the morning.  That is what we do 
for several people.” 

• X said, “I want to go watch “Gunsmoke”. 

• X replied, “It comes on at 11:30.” 
 

The next Dogwood Resident Council meeting will be held on September 27th at 
10:45am in the Dogwood Sunroom. Cindi asked for a volunteer to read over and sign 
the August 2023 minutes, and X said that she would do this. The Dogwood Resident 
Council Meeting was adjourned at 11:37am by X, seconded by X.     
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Linda Burton , CTRS    Cindi Pobuda, LBSW 
Recreational Therapist               Dogwood Pavilion Social Work 
 
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Naomi Rode, RN      Dogwood Pavilion Resident 
Dogwood Pavilion Assistant Director of Nursing 
 
 
 

Page 20 of 40



ELM RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
August 24, 2023 

 
The Elm August 2023 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council was 
called to order at 10:30am in the Elm Activity Room by Linda Burton. 
 
9 Members present were: 
Residents are marked X throughout the minutes. 
 
Staff members were introduced: 
Cindi Pobuda, LBSW – Elm Pavilion Social Work 
Linda Burton, CTRS, Life Enrichment  
Naomi Rode, RN, ADON – Elm Pavilion 
 
New Business: 
Linda made the following announcements:  

- The Summer Concert on the Lawn that was cancelled on Thursday August 3, 
Rebooted featuring Judy Harrison, is rescheduled for Thursday September 14. 

 
Special Event Activities for September 

• Friday September 1: Bingo Store – 10:30am-12:00pm – Multi-Purpose Room 
• Wednesday September 6: Piano Music Performance by John Denner – 11:00am 

– Multi-Purpose Room 
• Thursday September 7: Music & Fun with GTP Kids – 10:30am – Multi-Purpose 

Room 
• Sunday September 10: American Legion Riders – 2:00pm – Cherry Tent 
• Wednesday September 13: Church Services with Pastor Kent Anderson of West 

Bay Covenant Church – 11:00am – Multi-Purpose Room 
• Thursday September 14 – Donuts & Cartoons with GTP Kids – 10:30am – Multi-

Purpose Room 
 

Outings to sign-up for: 
Friday September 8: Lunch at Culvers (resident suggested, X, in March 2023); Board 
bus at 10:30am, return approximately 2:00pm 
 
Tuesday September 12: Shopping at Walmart (resident suggested, X, in June 2023); 
Board bus at 9:30am, return approximately 3:00pm 
 
Friday September 15: Leelanau Sands Casino (resident suggested X, in April 2023); 
Board bus at 9:30am, return approximately 12:30pm 

 
Tuesday September 26: Shopping at Dollar Tree (resident suggested, X, in May 2023); 
Board bus at 2:00pm, return approximately 4:00pm 
 
Residents present at the meeting signed up for the outing of their choosing as well as 
an alternate outing if they desired. 

Page 21 of 40



Residents were asked for ideas for future activities: 
• X requested to make chocolate chip cookies. 
• Naomi suggested caramel dip and apple slices with toppings. 

 
Resident Group Interview Questions: 
1.  Asked the residents, “If you need help, do the staff come to help you?”  X said, 
“Yes.”  X said, “Yes, they are happy to help.” 
 
2.  Asked the residents if they were being offered an evening snack.  X and X said, 
“Yes.” 
 
3.  Asked the residents if the staff treat them with respect.  X and X said, “Yes.” 
 
4.  Asked the residents if the food is good here.  X said, “It’s been good.”  X said, “About 
75%”.  X said, “Pretty good.” 
 
5.  Asked the residents if their rooms are clean.  X and X said, “Yes.”  X said, “Pretty 
clean.” 
 
6.  Asked the residents if their clothes came back from the laundry clean.  X and X said, 
“Yes.” 
 
7.  Asked the residents if the temperature in their rooms was comfortable.  X said, “A 
little cool.”  X said, “I’m cold.”  X said, “Okay.”  X said, "I don’t know.”  Cindi will ask 
maintenance to check temperatures on Elm. 
 
8.  Asked the residents if they had enough to do.  X said, “At Christmas we went to the 
basement at church.  I have been busy.”  X said, “Yes.” 
 
9.  Asked the residents if there is anything we could do to make things better.  X said, 
“Take care of stuff after you use it.   
 
The floor was opened for additional comments: 
No other concerns or complaints were noted.  The meeting adjourned at 11:05am. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Linda Burton , CTRS    Cindi Pobuda, LBSW 
Recreational Therapist               Elm Pavilion Social Work 
 
 
________________________________   
Naomi Rode, RN       
Elm Pavilion Assistant Director of Nursing 

Page 22 of 40



B

B B
0060421*001AMD14**001AMD14* *00*

Please use the enclosed envelope and
mail the completed survey to:

NRC Health
Survey Processing Center

PO BOX 82660
Lincoln, NE 68501-2660

1-800-733-6714

SURVEY INSTRUCTIONS

Please answer the following questions about
your experience.

Does staff really care about you?597001.
E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

Does staff listen to you?596972.
E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

Does staff respect your personal choices and
preferences?59706

3.

E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

Are staff aware of your important health needs?596804.
E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

Are your concerns addressed in a timely
manner?59688

5.

E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

Are you treated with courtesy and respect?596856.
E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

Are you kept informed about services and care?597107.
E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

Do you trust the staff?596938.
E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

Is the dining experience enjoyable?597219.
E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

Do activities, services, and programs support
your health and wellbeing?59692

10.

E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

Do you feel safe and secure here?5971611.
E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

OVERALL IMPRESSIONS

The following three questions are part of a
national initiative to measure the quality of
skilled nursing care centers.

In recommending this facility to your friends
and family, how would you rate it overall?51713

12.

E1
E2
E3
E4
E5

Poor
Average
Good
Very Good
Excellent

Overall, how would you rate the staff?5171413.
E1
E2
E3
E4
E5

Poor
Average
Good
Very Good
Excellent

Page 23 of 40

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box
Survey for Independent Residents

dgratton
Text Box
4



B

B B
0060421*001AMD25**001AMD25* *00*

How would you rate the care you receive?5171514.
E1
E2
E3
E4
E5

Poor
Average
Good
Very Good
Excellent

OVERALL RATING

How likely would you be to recommend this
facility to your family and friends?59669

15.

E0
E1
E2
E3
E4
E5
E6
E7
E8
E9
E10

0  Not at all likely
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10  Extremely Likely

What else would you like to say about your
experience?

16.

ABOUT YOU

Did someone help you complete this survey?5174017.
E1
E2

Yes
No > Thank you. Please return the
completed survey in the postage-paid
envelope. 

How did that person help you? (Check all that
apply)60770

18.

E1
E2
E3
E4
E5

Read the questions to me
Wrote down the answers I gave
Answered the questions for me
Translated the questions in my language
Helped in some other way

THANK YOU!

Please return the completed survey in the
postage-paid envelope.

Mail the completed survey to: NRC Health
Survey Processing Center, PO Box 82660,
Lincoln, NE 68501-2660.  NRC Health phone: 1-
800-733-6714.

© NRC Health, All Rights Reserved

Page 24 of 40



B

B B
0060421*001AMD14**001AMD14* *00*

Please use the enclosed envelope and
mail the completed survey to:

NRC Health
Survey Processing Center

PO BOX 82660
Lincoln, NE 68501-2660

1-800-733-6714

SURVEY INSTRUCTIONS

Please answer the following questions about
your experience.

Does staff really care about your loved one?597021.
E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

Does staff listen to you?596982.
E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

Does staff respect your loved one's personal
choices and preferences?59704

3.

E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

Are staff aware of your loved one's important
health needs?59682

4.

E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

Are your concerns addressed in a timely
manner?59689

5.

E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

Are you treated with courtesy and respect?596866.
E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

Are you kept informed about your loved one's
services and care?59712

7.

E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

Do you trust the staff?596948.
E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

Is the dining experience enjoyable?597229.
E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

Do activities, services, and programs support
your loved one's health and wellbeing?60769

10.

E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

Does your loved one feel safe and secure here?5971811.
E1
E2
E3
E4

No
Yes, somewhat
Yes, mostly
Yes, definitely

OVERALL IMPRESSIONS

The following three questions are part of a
national initiative to measure the quality of
skilled nursing care centers.

In recommending this facility to your friends
and family, how would you rate it overall?51791

12.

E1
E2
E3
E4
E5

Poor
Average
Good
Very Good
Excellent

Page 25 of 40

dgratton
Text Box
Survey for Families on behalf of the Resident



B

B B
0060421*001AMD25**001AMD25* *00*

Overall, how would you rate the staff?5179213.
E1
E2
E3
E4
E5

Poor
Average
Good
Very Good
Excellent

How would you rate the care your family
member receives?51793

14.

E1
E2
E3
E4
E5

Poor
Average
Good
Very Good
Excellent

OVERALL RATING

How likely would you be to recommend this
facility to your family and friends?59670

15.

E0
E1
E2
E3
E4
E5
E6
E7
E8
E9
E10

0  Not at all likely
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10  Extremely Likely

What else would you like to say about your
experience?

16.

THANK YOU!

Please return the completed survey in the
postage-paid envelope.

Mail the completed survey to: NRC Health
Survey Processing Center, PO Box 82660,
Lincoln, NE 68501-2660.  NRC Health phone: 1-
800-733-6714.

© NRC Health, All Rights Reserved

Page 26 of 40



Page 27 of 40

dgratton
Text Box
5



Page 28 of 40



Page 29 of 40



Page 30 of 40



Page 31 of 40

dgratton
Text Box
6



Page 32 of 40



Page 33 of 40



Page 34 of 40



Page 35 of 40



Page 36 of 40



Page 37 of 40



Page 38 of 40



GRAND TRAVERSE PAVILIONS 

Service Excellence Award Program 

August 2023 

  

Date: 08/07/2023 
Employee: Kristina Bevelhymer 

Awarded for: 
Kris was nominated by a Birch resident. “Kris does a super job and treats me 
great! I hate it when she is off and not working.” Thank you Kris! 

Position: CNA 
Nominated by: Traci Williams RN 

  

Date: 08/07/2023 
Employee: Jessica Hockett 

Awarded for: 
Jessica was nominated by a Birch resident for “treating me so great and being 
so super!” Thank you Jessica! 

Position: CNA 
Nominated by: Traci Williams 

  

Date: 08/14/2023 
Employee: Jessica Newberry 

Awarded for: 

Jessica does an excellent job communicating difficult messages to families in a 
way that they can understand. Thank you Jessica for your compassion and 
helping clients and families cope with these changes in their lives. 

Position: Speech Language Pathologist 
Nominated by: Amy Coneset 

  

Date: 08/14/2023 
Employee: Destiny Gothard 

Awarded for: 
Always popping into Laundry and offering to help and making sure we are full 
staffed for the day. Thank you so much. We Appreciate you! 

Position: Maintenance 
Nominated by: Heather Burgess 

  

Date: 08/21/2023 
Employee: Holly Edmondson 

Awarded for: 
Thank you for working on data entry and driving with PCC. You do a lot and 
always help where needed. Thank you!  

Position:  Clinical Case Manager 
Nominated by: Kristen Packard 

 
 

Page 39 of 40

dgratton
Text Box
7



 
 

Date: 08/28/2023 
Employee: Kimberly Kucharski 

Awarded for: Thank you for flexing your schedule to accommodate the needs of the residents! 
Position:  Social Worker 

Nominated by: Kristen Packard 

 
 

Date: 08/28/2023 
Employee: Nicole Ferguson 

Awarded for: 
For doing an evening shower on the day shift to help out. You work so hard and I 
appreciate all you do for our Elm residents/ 

Position:  CNA 
Nominated by: Julie Alber 

 
 
 
 
 

Date: 08/21/2023 
Employee: Marta Pratt 

Awarded for: 
Thank you for taking a turn and driving with PCC. It’s time consuming but you do 
learn a lot! Appreciate you! 

Position:  Cherry ADON 
Nominated by: Kristen Packard  

Page 40 of 40


